
Work Session Minutes 
June 16, 2015 

 
1. Mayor Mueller called the work session to order at 3:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 

1011 N. Coronado Drive, Sierra Vista, Arizona. 
 
Present: 
Mayor Rick Mueller – present 
Mayor Pro Tem Bob Blanchard – present 
Council Member Alesia Ash – present 
Council Member Gwen Calhoun – present 
Council Member Rachel Gray – present  
Council Member Hank Huisking – present 
Council Member Craig Mount – present 
 
Others present: 
Chuck Potucek, City Manager 
Mary Jacobs, Assistant City Manager 
Tom Alinen, Police Chief 
Adam Thrasher, Deputy Police Chief 
Commander J. Kosmider 
Ron York, Fire Chief 
David Felix, Finance Manager 
Pamela Weir, Management Analyst and Budget Officer 
Scott Dooley, Public Works Director 
Richard Cayer, Operations Manager 
Sharon Flissar, Engineer 
Don Brush, Community Development Director 
Lee Elaban, Leisure Services Superintendent 
Ryan Kooi, Management Analyst 
Judy Hector, PIO 
Barbara Fleming, Human Resources Director 
Victoria Yarbrough, Library and Leisure Services Director 
Laura Wilson, Procurement Manager 
Abe Rubio, IT Director 
Jill Adams, City Clerk 
 
2.  Discussion regarding FY 2016 Budget 
 

- Public Affairs Office and Economic Development 
 
Ms. Jacobs stated that ordinarily the two divisions would not be combined; but it is worth 
noting that the two divisions work closely together and most of the Council’s goals are 
assigned to the divisions. 
 
City Council Strategic Initiatives assigned to PAO/ED: 

- Establish quantifiable metrics to effectively measure the City's economic development 
efforts.   

- Identify workforce development needs with other partners that are necessary to provide 
quality employees to current and future employers.   

- Partner with K-12 schools to encourage programs that provide exploration of 
professional career options.  



- Develop, finance and implement a program to incentivize West End commercial 
property improvements.  

- Develop and invest in a tourism marketing strategy that is based on Sierra Vista’s 
target markets, incorporating partners to maximize economic impact.  

- Leverage partnerships to effectively promote Sierra Vista for both business attraction 
and tourism.  

 
PAO/ED Budget Highlights: 

- Economic Development Analyst position and related retention programming 
expenses cut, $90,000; 

- City page eliminated, a weekly full page ad that takes quite a bit of staff time;  
- Printing of City strategic plan eliminated.  
- Limited resources available to transition the City to its new brand.  
- Economic Development website underway, and phase II is included for next year 

and it contains GIS; 
- New visitor website should be operational shortly. 
- Full year operation of ED function will allow significant progress over last year.  

 
Mayor Mueller asked about printing the Strategic and Leadership Plans. Ms. Jacobs stated 
that it is not the VISTA 2030 that is the general plan. The Council Strategic Plan will be 
available to print on demand; but it is on the web site and there are actual copies available. 
 
The CAC recommendation for Economic Development and Tourism was to increase funding to 
the two functions combined and suggested $250,000. 
 
Ms. Jacobs stated that $300,000 is tourism’s portion of the PAO budget level funded; but 
Economic Development was cut by $90,000. 
  
Recommendations for Possible Budget Increase:  

- Reinstate Frozen ED Analyst position  $90,000  
- Implement Facade Grant Program for West End $50,000  
- Branding Implementation    $45,000  

 
Ms. Jacobs stated that the branding implementation a real effort to include banners on Fry in 
order to get the brand out. 
 

- Cyber Security Market Study    $20,000  
 
Ms. Jacobs stated that the cyber security market study is necessary as it has been identified 
as a niche market by local experts and ties in with the U of A’s cyber security bachelor 
degrees in the City. 
 
Other recommendations for a possible budget increase are: 

- Spanish Language Tourism Website   $10,000  
- Retiree Marketing Program    $15,000  
- Pacific NW Ecotourism Marketing Program  $15,000  
- Establish Attraction Fund for Closing Incentive $30,000  
- Reinstate City Page     $20,000  
- Print Council Strategic Plan    $2,500 

 
Mayor Mueller asked if there was a consensus for additional cuts to the PAO/ED Budget. 
There was no answer. 



 
Council Member Gray noted that if Council is going to be successful, then economic 
development needs help and she would like to add the analyst back into the budget.  
 
Council Member Huisking stated that she agrees because the plan that Ms. McFarland has is 
ambitious and the City would be able to reach out; but it will require assistance.  
 
Council Member Mount asked about the qualifications required of the analyst. Ms. Jacobs 
stated that staff would use the management analyst job description on file and depending on 
the department then those would be finely tuned.  
 
Ms. McFarland stated that she would be looking for general knowledge and the person would 
need to have a marketing background and investment in the community. She would teach that 
person specific areas of economic development; but that person would need to have a degree 
in economic development.  
 
Council Member Mount stated that he would not be against it if the degree is in economics or 
business; but he has yet to see a vision of where the City is going. He is concerned about the 
initial investment that should come after Council knows what Council wants to do. 
 
Council Member Calhoun asked if the position could be a part-time position and if the position 
can be shared. Ms. Jacobs stated that there is more for a full time and her concern is that 
professionals are not looking for a part-time based on experience. 
 
Ms. Jacobs stated that the person will work with other departments; but this is an opportunity 
for a young person fresh out of college. 
 
Council Member Calhoun stated that the City is suffering for the lack of staff and she still 
thinks that the City needs the staff. 
 
Council Member Ash stated that her concern is that the strategic initiatives and sheer 
expectations for economic development are going into next year with only one person and she 
does not know if the goals are realistic. Either the goals need to be tempered or Council needs 
to fund the position. 
 
Mayor Mueller noted that one goal needed is to establish metrics.  Council Member Ash stated 
that she understands the point; but does not have a clear answer as to what the City is looking 
for.  Council Member Mount stated that he agrees with that because the process needs to be 
controlled so that it works well. Also, Council has not yet seen what those metrics would be. 
 
Council Member Gray stated that there are performance measures that are established and a 
plan was presented; but she also agrees with Council Member Ash in that there needs to be 
some modifications. There is no way one person can do all this. She suggested making the 
adjustment to keep moving forward and bring the additional person on board. 
 
Council Member Calhoun stated that in order to continue to recognize the growth with the 
development of the plan is to have regular presentations. Putting if off another year is 
defeating the purpose. 
 
Council Member Huisking stated that with this type of environment where decisions are made 
quickly it is important for Ms. McFarland to have another person. This is an important initiative. 
 



Mayor Pro Tem Blanchard asked if the funds are available. Mayor Mueller noted that it is 
about $90,000 back into the budget and Council would have to find the funds. 
 
Mr. Potucek stated that what Council is going to see over and over again is a result of what 
was needed to do in order to present a balanced budget. When talking about the budget in 
January, Council was told that positions would need to be cut in order to balance due to 
changes in revenue. The only place to balance was in the area of personnel costs and going 
forward decisions is based on policy. The policy on economic development calls for a specific 
agenda and if the funding is not there then Council will have to narrow focus on what Ms. 
McFarland is working on in order to meet the resources available; but that is a policy decision. 
 
Council Member Calhoun stated that the Façade Program is important as well as the 
appearance of the community and it should be added back into budget along with the branding 
implementation.  
 
Mayor Mueller stated that if he was a business man and had a choice to spend zero or to go 
ahead and take out of his own pocket, his option would be to go to the Economic Development 
Foundation and go through the Façade Program. This seems to be surplus able. The 
Economic Development Foundation is a revolving loan.  
 
Council Member Gray noted that during discussions, she did not get a clear picture; but 
agrees with Mayor Mueller to go with what is less out of pocket over time. 
 
Ms. Jacobs noted that there have been successful businesses in the past and a matching 
grant incents them. It is a matching investment; but it is a policy decision for Council. 
 
Council Member Gray asked if they have one or the other. Ms. Jacobs stated that they have 
both. Staff had envisioned potentially using the program; but the criteria have not been 
established.  Mayor Mueller stated that there are no uniform architectural standards.  
 
Council Member Mount asked if a project manager can be considered instead of an analyst. 
Mayor Mueller stated that Ms. McFarland was hired for that. 
 
In response to Council Member Mount, Ms. McFarland replied that she has 15 years of 
experience, has managed projects and a business degree. 
 
Council Member Huisking stated that she would like to see the branding implementation back 
into the budget since a lot of time has been spent on it.  There is a great expectation to have 
something to show for the money spent.   
 
Council Member Gray stated that this year is not the right year for a façade program; but she 
is interested in looking at it for later years as it is good. She also agrees with Council Member 
Huisking concerning the branding implementation.   
 
In response to Mayor Mueller, Ms. Jacobs stated that the funding would be for a kickoff and 
publicity because it much broader. Ms. Hector added that the funds are needed to leverage 
the energy to help gain business and community buy-in and to target for business, tourism or 
to relocate. The banners would be important to get the message out and the re-skinning of the 
current website along with developing current publications. 
 



In response to Council Member Mount, Ms. Hector stated that there is no specific amount; but 
the expectation was that once in place then there would be a list of opportunities to leverage 
the brand and that is not going to be without additional cost.  
 
Council Member Gray stated that she understands and recommended moving forward 
because it does take money.   
 
In response to Council Member Mount, Ms. Jacobs stated that the initial splash would be done 
and then staff would figure out how to utilize the brand as there may be new initiatives.   
 
Council Member voiced his concern at the fact that there is no plan and that money has been 
spent; but Council does not know where it ends nor have they seen it. He suggested walking 
this back and making sure what direction to take.   
 
Mayor Mueller stated that his understanding was that the funds were for more advertisement 
and suggests a quiet opening.   
 
Council Member Calhoun asked Ms. McFarland and Ms. Hector if they believe that Council is 
dropping the ball in promoting the brand.  Mayor Mueller noted that dropping the ball is not the 
right phrase and explained that staff would re-do letterhead and etc. as that is a normal 
process.  Ms. Jacobs stated that there is minimal money in the budget.  
 
Ms. McFarland explained that it is not just about using the brand, it is implementing it and it is 
important to sell the brand as a marketing platform. Ms. Hector added that she was involved 
with another community for a brand where the funding was eliminated for the implementation 
and the brand died.  
 
Council Member Mount stated that he is not against the branding piece; but the thing that has 
him worried has to do with having gimmicks and the City does not. He has not seen anything; 
but talk about the brand and he wants to know. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Blanchard stated that he does not know about it. He has not been told what it 
is; but it is hard for him to support it.  
 
Council Member Calhoun stated that she would like to support it and noted that if Council 
hates the brand, the money is still there and it will not be spent.  
 
Council Member Huisking noted that this is the danger in trying to figure out what to cut.  
 
Council Member Ash asked about the Retiree Marketing Program. Ms. Jacobs explained that it 
is a program targeted at retirees to attract them to Sierra Vista. It really was the brain child of 
working with developers. Within that category, some of the niche, people who like birding and 
etc., the City gets them as tourist first and then they buy homes, which is good for the 
economy. 
 
In response to Mayor Pro Tem Blanchard, Ms. Jacobs stated that it is different than it was 10 
to 15 years ago where magazine ads were used. Staff envisions similar ideas but with the 
addition of a more on line, social media promotion. 
 
Mayor Mueller stated that the City can assist; but it is not the role of government to sell houses 
for a private developer.   
 



Council Member Mount stated that he does not mind marketing to the retirees to get them out 
to Sierra Vista; but he does not want gimmicks and Council needs to focus on the housing 
market.  
 
Mayor Mueller stated that it does not look like that program is ready for this year. Mayor Pro 
Tem Blanchard and Council Member Gray agreed.  
 
Council Member Gray asked if the City will have a partner concerning the closing fund. Ms. 
Jacobs stated that it is a pot of money for incentives, i.e. certain infrastructure as the City 
cannot give out money.  There are a number of communities that offer incentives to attract 
companies.  
 
Council Member Gray stated that she would like put back into the budget the analyst position 
and the branding implementation. The rest can go back to planning. Mayor Mueller stated that 
he agreed and noted that the establishment of closing fund needs to have infrastructure that 
would assist with the attraction piece and then the City can add $50,000 a year to have a bank 
of cash available so that it looks attractive. 
 
Council Member Huisking asked if link could be added to the tourism site instead of a Spanish 
website.  Ms. Hector stated that it is possible; but it is not the best way to handle marketing as 
there are cultural issues. 
 
Council Member Huisking asked for it to be considered next year due to the amount of 
revenue from the Mexican tourists and commented that the other northwest ecotourism 
marketing is a good program as well for next year; but she mixed feelings about the retiree 
program. 
 
Mayor Mueller stated that there is consensus on adding back into the budget the economic 
development analyst and the branding implementation. 
 

- Police department 
 
Ms. Jacobs stated that Police Department does not have assigned any Council strategic 
initiatives. The base budget reflects less than status quo with two police officer and one animal 
control officer positions left vacant. The impacts of having minimum staffing goal of six officers 
per shift leaves positions vacant in specialty proactive areas; but officers are picking up the 
slack on ACO calls.  
 
Training cuts to the tune of $15,000 will be offset by RICO funds; but it reduces planned RICO 
funds available for planned uses such as purchasing body cams. 
  
Calls for service are slightly reduced; but calls that require multiple officers are going up 
noticeably. There are active efforts of officers showing more seized assets for public safety 
use; but the City should not grow reliant on these funds.  
 
The national trends point to the need for more community interaction of police personnel and 
the department has institutionalized accreditation within the department. Personnel continue to 
monitor new requirements and prepare for 2017 evaluation.  
 
The CAC Recommendations for the Police Department are:  

- Fund vehicle rotation plan for police vehicles, which $500,000 has been funded;  
- Increase the number of police officers - Not funded and positions were decreased; and 



- Increase adoption fees for dogs to $75 have been included in the budget as well as the 
increase of records fees for the public.  

 
The recommendations for Potential Budget Increases  

- Restore the two frozen police officer positions $175,000  
- Add two additional police officer positions  $250,000  
- Restore police training    $15,000  
- Phase I of body cam implementation   $92,000  

 
Mayor Mueller asked if there were any recommendations for further cuts. There was no 
answer. 
 
Council Member Calhoun stated that she would like to restore the two frozen positions and 
asked about the new requirements, CALEA evaluation and the impact on the community if 
these are not added back into the budget. Police Chief Alinen stated that CALEA is 
accreditation that certifies that the police department is meeting the standards and it is broadly 
accepted across the United States. When looking at officers, the department is looking at 
trying to get to a minimum staffing level of six officers per shift and that is based off of training, 
time off, and etc.; but the department is running with four officers on duty. The loss has 
impacts in detectives or in the school resources area. Pulling officers off of major crimes 
affects investigative levels and the department utilizes a window of 72 hours and they have 
been successful. It is the same if officers are taken out of narcotics. The department is 
projecting that if it can maintain its levels, the department can receive another $100,000 
through RICO and that can be diverted to other projects. 
 
Council Member Mount stated that he supports adding back into the budget the two officers 
and training. Council Members Huisking and Gray agreed to put back into the budget the two 
officers. 
 
Council Member Gray asked about training.  Police Chief Alinen stated that the department 
has gotten the certifications covered for the year; but they would be sending a new detective to 
school as well as officers that are coming out of the academy. 
 
Mayor Mueller asked if this is offset by RICO funds. Police Chief Alinen stated that the 
department is sitting on $140,000 in RICO and they could move some of it into training and 
use it legitimately. The department is also looking at Phase 1 of cameras. 
 
Further discussion ensued amongst Council Members Gray, Mount, Mayor Mueller and Police 
Chief Alinen about training and RICO funds. 
 
Council Member Calhoun asked if people will not adopt dogs due to the adoption fee being 
increased. Police Chief Alinen stated that Animal Control is aggressive in that field and all of 
the donations offset getting the animals ready to be adopted. Probably half of the adoption 
fees are actually paid through the donation funds and luckily a lot of people donate. It is going 
to put the burden back on people where it should be. 
 
Ms. Jacobs stated that the euthanization rate is low and the department works hard. The 
department requested that the fee be applied only to dogs because cats are harder to adopt. 
However, if staff sees an impact in lower adoption rates, the fee can be adjusted by the city 
manager. 
 



Mayor Pro Tem Blanchard asked about the types of calls that require multiple officers. Police 
Chief Alinen explained that domestic violence calls sometimes require three to four officers. 
Alarm calls, check welfares, traffic accidents and suicides also require more than one officer. 
 

- Public Works 
 
Ms. Jacobs stated that there are two Strategic Initiatives assigned to Public Works and that is 
to coordinate the development and support of water conservation programs and efforts with 
the Upper San Pedro Partnership members and other water partners; and to create an asset 
inventory and needs assessment for all City facilities to guide future investments.  
 
Public Works Budget Highlights: 
 
The street maintenance level funded with estimated backlog of nearly $13 Million. The new 
route was added in Refuse along with new truck and position.  
 
The reconstruction of Taxiways G and J are included in the budget and it is $90,875 city 
match. Phase II of the Fry/7th Signal improvement project was included in the budget along 
with $250,000 for Cove improvements.  
 
The Coronado widening from Busby to Golf Links will be funded by development fees. 
 
The engineering professional service was cut $25,000 as well as the Facility and infrastructure 
maintenance, $35,000. The remaining funds are less than bare bones and the department will 
continue to defer maintenance for city facilities. 
  
There are no grant match funds for Transit bus replacements, $78,400 and the parks and 
grounds maintenance are not able to keep up with demands. 
 
The only vehicle rotation funds included are for the police department at $500,000. The older 
vehicles require more maintenance to keep them on the road; but Fleet is preparing to 
implement integrated inventory management system for parts and they expect some cost 
savings as well as efficiencies in the coming year.  

 
Mayor Mueller asked if staff has assessed the general fleet to see if the City has the right 
number of vehicles to operate.  Mr. Dooley stated that fleet is assessed on a yearly basis and 
the department moves vehicles out every year. Last year was the major rotation of the crown 
Vics. 
 
Mayor Mueller stated that he is concerned with the reduction of personnel as there is probably 
a chance that there are vehicles that may not be needed and hopefully that is addressed.  
 
Ms. Jacobs stated that the CAC Recommendations for Public Works include an increase in 
street maintenance funding by $600,000 to $1,000,000, which is not included. CAC 
recommended to fund the vehicle rotation program between $900,000 to $1,000,000 that is 
partially included for police vehicles (only $500,000); and an increase high demand customer 
service positions, which is not included.  

 
In response to Council Member Calhoun, Ms. Jacobs stated that there is $1,000,000; 
$700,000 is from the SSVEC franchise and $300,000 from HURF. 
 



Council Member Mount asked about high demand positions. Ms. Jacobs stated that this is the 
theme that was heard from all of the departments. These are the ones that are communicating 
with the public the most, i.e., the front desk people. 
 
Council Member Mount stated that he thought that the Public Works Department was still 
undermanned; but nothing has changed. Mr. Dooley explained that this is a unique situation. 
There are other funding sources, i.e. HURF and Transit. Facility maintenance has been held 
up on equipment and that division has been without a customer service representative for a 
couple of years. 
 
Council Member Mount asked if more people or more street maintenance is needed. Mr. 
Dooley stated that the Enterprise Funds are not lacking; but there is a lack of personnel and 
that would be in Facilities maintenance. Some of the personnel from Fleet and Parks are 
highly subsidized by the General Fund and the department could use some of those. 
 
Ms. Jacobs stated that the CAC recommended maintenance in city buildings. The top 
recommendation is that Council increase building maintenance that has been deferred and 
that is a big number which Mr. Dooley has broken down in priorities, i.e., the pool decking at 
the Cove, card readers, painting the Pedro Castro Center and other buildings. 
 
The CAC also recommended funding the part-time maintenance worker, which would provide 
flexibility as it is difficult since they supervisor the Department of Corrections’, adding the 
nonpolice vehicle replacement program and resurfacing the six courts at King’s Court. 
 
Council Member Calhoun asked Mr. Dooley about Transit and the busses. Mr. Dooley stated 
that the department has moved to smaller busses with only a couple of the larger ones still in 
operation. The cost savings comes from the newer busses. 
 
Council Member Calhoun asked why the department has not been able to keep up the 
demands concerning the parks and grounds maintenance. Ms. Jacobs added that the looks of 
facilities will also go down.  
 
Mayor Mueller asked Mr. Dooley if he sees degradation of the grounds and fields next year 
and what does he think are the major changes between the two budgets.  Mr. Dooley stated 
that he made recommendations and it was all cut. There are improvements anticipated 
throughout all of the parks and as for appearance, the City has excellent employees and as 
stressed as they are now, the employees have a lot of pride in what they do and will continue 
to do the best that they can. 
 
Mayor Mueller asked that based on what is budgeted, does he see any changes in 
appearance. Mr. Dooley stated that it is hard to say that in one year; but the department will be 
able to maintain. There is degradation and it is compounded. 
 
Council Member Mount asked how much is used out of the General Fund to subsidize Public 
Works’ budget. Ms. Jacobs stated that it $430,000 and that would be put towards 
maintenance. Mr. Dooley added that there are things, i.e., HVAC, sky lights, painting and it is a 
continual thing.  
 
Council Member Mount suggested to Council to remove the busses and increase deferred 
maintenance. Ms. Jacobs stated that staff did not include the additional grant match for the 
busses as it is a reduction. The challenge with these grants is that for every dollar that is 



reduced on the City’s side, the federal side is reduced as well and it would mean looking at 
adjusting routes that need to be done in a systematic way.  
 
Mayor Mueller added that this is tied to an annual funding process; but he would like time to 
actually look at that. Mr. Potucek stated that the reduction on the order for the transit subsidy 
will reduce levels of service and he has no idea how ridership would be impacted. 
 
Council Member Mount stated that it does not have to be an all of the time thing like was done 
in economic development. If the City does it this year, staff can assess ridership and catch up 
on maintenance as the CAC discussion revealed that there was ridership decrease. 
 
Ms. Jacobs stated that the department applied for the grant and it was submitted a month ago. 
Staff would have to go to the Federal Government and amend it, which would be a challenging 
public process to go through. The grant is in the budget and the grant application was 
approved. Council Member Mount stated that he does not recall that approval. 
 
Mayor Mueller stated that there is not a consensus for additional cuts in transit. 
 
Council Member Ash stated that she doesn’t disagree with Council Member Mount; but in 
theory it sounds great and in practice it is not that easy.   
 
Ms. Jacobs stated that it is a process and staff has to follow the federal guidelines to spend 
their funds. There was an opportunity to increase revenues and a recommendation to change 
and deviated routes; but there was no interest in doing that, which would have saved money. 
 
Council Member Calhoun stated that she believes that Council does not understand how it 
works and there are several areas.   
 
Mr. Potucek stated that it would be a policy decision on transit and the level service that the 
City wants to provide. This means a subsidy and it is a lot less when the City had the lottery; 
but the Legislature took that. The City is now looking at reducing the level of subsidy because 
of the fiscal situation. There are consultants that can assist and worthwhile to look into. 
 
Council Member Huisking asked if it is the full $687,000 to be put back into the budget or 
$900,000. She also asked if $900,000 is the average that Public Works puts into facilities. Mr. 
Dooley stated that with current issues it could be from $900,000 to $1,000,000. Mr. Potucek 
stated that it used to be about $500,000 and now it is nowhere near that. There is a Capital 
Maintenance Plan that is followed; but over the last years the City has not been able to do 
that. 
 
Ms. Jacobs stated that with regard to vehicle rotation, the CAC recommended a combined 
effort towards vehicle rotation. 
 
Council Member Gray stated that if building maintenance is not funded, maintenance will grow 
out of hand and if it is needed, she is in favor of it being funded. 
 
Mayor Mueller stated that the things that concern him are what is out there that could go 
wrong and cost more later on. Mr. Dooley provided an analogy of one’s own home.  Mr. 
Potucek stated that the OYC is living proof that facilities are going to be around for 40 to 50 
years. The City could sink money into it and it would all be for not, it needs to be replaced. If 
the City is going to maintain buildings for years they require maintenance. The biggest danger 
besides public safety is deferred maintenance. 



 
Council Member Huisking asked for specific examples. Mr. Dooley stated that safety comes 
first.  The HVACs are well beyond their year; but they are still functional. However, if they go 
down they will have to be replaced and then something else on the list would not get done. He 
does not feel comfortable with what is currently in the budget for Public Works, $271,000 plus 
facilities. 
 
Council Member Mount asked if the department can manage everything that is mentioned. Mr. 
Dooley stated that he does not believe he can. Mr. Potucek added that if there is an HVAC 
failure and there is no money it still needs to be repaired and the department would have to cut 
out other needs and address that need.   
 
Council Member Mount voiced his concern at the fact that if Mr. Dooley can’t manage, the 
funds need to be in the budget. Mr. Dooley stated that $271,000 in capital was initially 
submitted, i.e.., structural face on the cove, door jams, stairs, base columns underneath to 
provide structural integrity and roof repairs for Fire Station No. 1 along with painting at the 
Pedro Castro Center since it has never been done. All of these items have been deferred. 
 
Council Member Gray noted that this is not the first and last year that the department did not 
have the money and these are things that have to be taken care of. She does not think that not 
funding it is not an option. 
 
In response to Council Member Mount, Mr. Dooley stated that the proposed budget is not 
something that the department can live with. It is an ultimative. 
 
Mayor Mueller suggested that $300,000 which was mentioned may be appropriate to be 
added back into the maintenance arena. This is in addition to what is budgeted already. 
 
Council Member Calhoun stated that she is inclined to support the full amount. She would 
prefer if the department had $600,000. Council Member Gray agreed on the $687,000.  
 
Council Member Mount stated that if Mr. Dooley says he can’t make it with the budgeted 
amount, it should have been in the budget and not try to add it in now.  
 
Mayor Mueller noted that the bottom line is $306,000 and there are four members in support of 
that. Council Member Mount stated that he would support what Mr. Dooley needs. Council 
Member Huisking stated that she supports the whole amount. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Blanchard stated that it seems to him that Council has been budgeting on 
funds that the City does not have. Council is going to need find ways to bring money into the 
system. 
 
Council Member Ash asked if $306,000 is the level of funding needed to meet the public’s 
expectation of service or is it $687,000. Mr. Dooley says that it is manageable; but it is not fair 
to what the public should expect. 
 
Mr. Dooley stated that $687,000 is what is needed. The Public Works Department knew the 
crunch going into the initial review.  
 
Council Member Ash stated that she is inclined to go with the $687,000. 
 



Mayor Mueller stated that there is a consensus to add back into the budget $687,000 for the 
deferred building maintenance. 
 
Council Member Calhoun stated that she would love to be able to take care of King’s Court 
and asked if the part-time maintenance worker is essential. Ms. Jacobs stated that there are 
back logs in maintenance and if the department can free a full time worker from mundane 
things and utilize a part-time to work with the Department of Corrections’ workers, the other 
staff can then tackle bigger issues that need to be done in the facilities. 
 
Council Member Calhoun asked if it is fluff. Ms. Jacobs stated that it is not, it is in terms of 
meeting maintenance. 
 
Council Member Mount stated that there is no choice when everything is critical. He 
understands that the City is strapped; but is it needed or can the department live without it.  
Ms. Jacobs stated that the department can live without it. 
 
Council Member Gray asked that now that there is consensus to fund maintenance will the 
workload require an additional maintenance worker so that it is easier.  Mr. Dooley stated that 
a lot of the items are contracted work and the in-house work is the small items. The staff does 
not have time for large projects. 
 
Council Member Calhoun asked about the costs and losses of contracting out.  Mr. Dooley 
stated that even when work is contracted out, the department has to have personnel to 
oversee that work and in-house sources are utilized to manage that. 
 
Mayor Mueller stated that the deferred maintenance and overseeing the Department of 
Corrections’ workers are both supervised by the department. 
 
Council Member Huisking asked if the part-time maintenance worker, that supervises the 
Department of Corrections’ workers, could be able to do abatements. Mr. Dooley stated that 
abetment work is contracted out. Ms. Jacobs stated that the issue can be explored; but there 
is liability issues associated with that. 
 
Mayor Mueller stated that there is a consensus to put back into the budget the differed building 
maintenance. 
 

- Administrative services and nondepartent expenses 
 
Ms. Jacobs stated that the following Council Strategic Initiatives were assigned to the City 
Manager and Administrative Services:  

- Expand lobbying efforts in support of retention and expansion on Ft. Huachuca and 
strengthen and create new partnerships to more effectively demonstrate the Fort’s 
value; and  

- Implement the Classification and Compensation Plan for City employees. 
 
The budget highlights: 
 
The Classification and Compensation implementation is included in the budget.  
 
The Legal Services professional services budget was adjusted to delete the Redflex payment 
and the City Clerk’s electronic document conversion was also cut. 
 



The employee recruitment advertising and candidate travel for a combined $10,000 was cut. 
The employee recognition program was cut in the amount of $10,000 and miscellaneous travel 
and supplies were also cut.  
 
An additional account clerk position has been added in Finance to be funded 100% by the 
Sewer and Sanitation Enterprise Funds in order to meet new state laws. 
  
The community survey is included in the City Manager budget to help establish a baseline for 
performance measurement and resource prioritization.  
 
The Procurement Department is pursuing smart purchasing solutions to save time and money.  
 
The customer service representatives at the front desk have been given some relief through 
implementation of the automated phone system; but it still remains challenging to maintain 
service levels during busy times.  
 
The Human Resources Department has seen significant increases in applicant pools, which 
impact the workload with less staff. 
   
There is no new technology in the IT Department; but maintenance of existing systems in 
continual. The department is behind schedule in computer replacements and PC software 
upgrades.  

 
The CAC recommendations were to implement the Classification and Compensation Plan, 
which has been included in the budget and to consider increases in administrative positions, 
which has also been done as an account clerk has been added to Finance.  
 
Recommendations for Potential Budget Increase:  

- Add Management Analyst  to Human Resources  $67,559  
- Convert Historical Documents to Electronic (City Clerk) $25,000  
- Restore some employee advertising funds   $2,500  
- Restore cut employee recognition funds   $10,000  

 
Mayor Mueller asked if there were any proposed administrative services cuts. There was no 
response 
 
In response to Council Member Huisking, Ms. Fleming elaborated on what a management 
analyst would do for the Human Resources Department. The qualifications would require a 
background in Human Resources with a minimum of a bachelor degree and supervisory 
experience. The department has been without the position since she was on board. The 
department was staffed at seven and now there are only three employees. The employees are 
all working overtime and meeting the mission much slower. Therefore, the time to fill positions 
is slower along with the scheduling of interviews, which affects all of the departments. The 
additional management analyst would help all of the departments and it would take a little of 
the frustration away. She also noted that Human Resources tests out applicants and those 
take time.   
 
Council Member Mount asked about the number of positions that are open that Human 
Resources is trying to fill. Ms. Fleming stated that it varies and it is never less than 20 to 25, 
i.e., the life guard position. The part-time is a turnover as well as the recreational aides. There 
are three in the police department and they are looking at hiring multiples in that position as 



well as in Dispatch. The department is looking at 20 to 25 on part-times and six to eight full 
time on any given time and it depends where they are in the process. 
 
Council Member Mount noted that the problem came from cutting down positions and freezing 
some so now the departments have added more positions back in. He asked Council that at 
what point does Council continue to add positions to support the others, it is a domino effect 
now and this needs to settle down.   
 
Mayor Mueller noted that the total is at $1,110,000. Council Member Mount stated that Council 
has to look at efficiencies because they have to come from somewhere. 
 
Council Member Gray stated that she understands that Council is going to look at everything 
the following day and decide. Mayor Mueller stated that there will be quick review and then the 
decision will be made. 
 
Council Member Huisking commented on vacant positions not filled. Mayor Mueller stated that 
the profession requires a full time employee and that is going to be a challenge to hire a part-
time. He suggested that Council go around and talk to the directors about the issues and 
maybe this way they will have a resolution as there is a need to understand what the effect is 
on the budget. He also noted that when the City does not give superior service, Council hears 
about it. 
 
Council Member Calhoun stated that over the years some have had those conversations and 
they have the awareness. It is stressful and there is frustration. 
 
In response to Council Member Gray, Mr. Potucek stated that there were losses of positions 
due to the attrition program when the economy started going bad. This has been ongoing 
steadily and the departments have been dealing with this for the past seven years.  
 
Council Member Gray noted that the addition of the management analyst is a top 
recommendation and it is important. She recommends that the position be put back in to help 
the Human Resources Department do their job. Council Member Huisking agreed to support 
the addition of the management analyst. 
 
Mr. Potucek noted that the Human Resources Department is the thinnest. Cuts are in 
administration and it is not any different than in any business. The City has gutted out middle 
management, clerks and secretaries over time and admin staff has been asked to do.  When 
one walks around the building there are a lot of empty offices. Human Resources cannot do 
training and some are very important, i.e., drug testing. 
 
Council Member Mount noted that the Classification and Compensation Plan was built into the 
budget without proposed tax increases and pointed out that every person that is added is 
increasing that budget and it will increase every year. He suggested adding the management 
analyst and one of the two frozen police officers. 
 
Mayor Mueller stated that the discussion will take place on the following day.   
 
Council Member Huisking stated that the conversion of electronic data is money well spent 
and she would support that. Mayor Mueller stated that Ms. Adams is doing a great job and has 
stated that it would not be necessary as she is currently working toward consolidation. 
 



Council Member Mount stated that he doesn’t know if it is critical; but it lets the department get 
started. Ms. Adams stated that the department has some funds to work on the process and it 
is being phased in. The department currently has a full set imaged and it can be accessed; but 
not in the Document Management System. It is a less expensive step that the department has 
taken that was budgeted. 
 
Council Member Calhoun commented on what Council Member Mount is trying to do which is 
to move funds around; but the City is at a bare minimum and it might not work. 
 
Council Member Mount noted that Council has not talked about how the City is going to pay 
for the additions and added that when he walks down his street there are eight for sale signs 
on the homes. The City needs people to pay for these additions. 
 
Council Member Huisking asked about the Employee Recognition Program. Ms. Jacobs stated 
that it has been cut and she will have more detail later on. 
 
Ms. Jacobs stated that there are additional carryover projects. The revenue and expenditure 
will carryover and there will be no net impact to budget for the Public Works Department: 

- Ground water modeling    $20,000 
- Pumper replacement with utility truck  $105,000 
- Front loader replacement    $310,000  

 
Ms. Jacobs stated that on the following day, Mr. Potucek will go over options to consider 
meeting the $1.1 Million. 
 
Council Member Gray asked to have the list emailed to them. 
 
Mayor Mueller noted that at the next work session, he will have Mr. Potucek recommend cuts, 
discuss those, and list the eight plus ups, and revenue options. 
 
3. Adjourn 
 
Mayor Mueller adjourned the work session at 5:52 p.m.  
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Mayor Frederick W. Mueller 
 
Minutes prepared by:    Attest: 
 
 
_____________________________  _____________________________ 
Maria G. Marsh, Deputy City Clerk  Jill Adams, City Clerk 
 


